
Municipal Services Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMMonday, June 24, 2024

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

24-0837 Minutes from June 10, 2024

06-10-24 MSC Minutes.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

24-0838 Approve the request from Rise Apartments, LLC for a permanent street 

occupancy permit at 113 W. Harris Street for two door swing areas and 

two associated concrete stoops to extend into the Harris Street 

right-of-way a maximum of 4 feet. 

Rise Apartments LLC - Permanent Occupancy Permit App MSC 06-24-2024.pdfAttachments:

24-0839 Approve the request to extend street occupancy permit 24-027-T from 

The Boldt Company for a street occupancy permit for the Fox Commons 

City Center Plaza project along College Avenue from City Center East to 

the entrance of City Center West for a period ending on August 15, 

2024.

Boldt College Ave Occupancy Permit Extension MSC final 06-24-2024 .pdfAttachments:

24-0754 Approve the request from Lil Taco for a street occupancy permit to place 

tables and chairs at 106 S. State Street. 

4 Lil Taco Tables & Chairs Permit.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/10/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Hold until next scheduled meeting.

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 6/21/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24538
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47ec8467-aca5-45fa-8925-361783d0a04b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24539
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3c3e1561-5fee-42bb-8fb7-5a127d096dce.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24540
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e4cb025b-95b5-43cd-80b9-a198ba267994.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24455
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=918074f4-d554-414f-85f2-4347c1ee73d9.pdf


June 24, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

24-0766 Resolution #7-R-24 To Rescind the No Mow May Ordinance Language 
 

#7-R-24 Rescind No Mow May.pdf

WeedComplaintData_MSC_Memo06062024.pdf

No Mow May Resolution Resident Handout.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

6/10/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Hold until next scheduled meeting.

7. Information Items

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during 

this meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 6/21/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24467
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f2c2530e-075d-4977-bdbf-344722e929a2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cab80162-4136-46c3-9a11-070194734075.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d99da88-b20b-4516-804b-8028bad38026.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Municipal Services Committee

4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, June 10, 2024

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and FirkusPresent: 5 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

24-0763 Meeting Minutes from 5/20/24

05-20-24 MSC Minutes.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24464
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ea8d16ce-6055-4fca-b98e-293a89b72271.pdf


June 10, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0750 Approve the updated roadway design parameters for planned 2025 

street reconstruction: Morrison Street, from Glendale Avenue to Pershing 

Street (1,480 ft), be reconstructed with asphalt pavement and concrete 

curb and gutter. The details of the proposed Morrison Street 

reconstruction project are as follows: 

- ELIMINATE previously approved curb extensions (narrowing of the 

pavement) at Marquette St to serve as traffic calming. 

- New asphalt pavement and concrete curb and gutter constructed to a 

width of 27’ from back of curb to back of curb, which is 6’ narrower than 

the existing street (33’) within this portion of the project. UNCHANGED 

from previous design approval.

- Traffic calming circle constructed at the intersection with Lindbergh 

Street. UNCHANGED from previous design approval.

- Existing on-street parking would be restricted along the west side of 

Morrison Street, within the project limits. UNCHANGED from previous 

design approval.

DPW staff recommend the above change based on the new Complete 

Streets Design Guide standards, which were adopted after the 

referenced design recommendation was made at November 20, 2023 

Municipal Services Committee. 

1 Morrison St Informational Letter (Modified Design Proposal) 

05-29-24.pdf

Attachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0752 Approve the request from J.H. Findorff & Son Inc for a street occupancy 

permit for the Fox Commons City Center Plaza construction material 

loading, partial closure of College Avenue on Mondays and Wednesdays 

starting July 1, 2024 through November 15, 2024.

2 J.H Findorff & Son Inc 7-1-24 to 11-15-24.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24451
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=01f69ada-c6ee-496d-a57c-7c8ca0544583.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24453
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ce89063d-7058-4b5c-867c-a9f55296f522.pdf


June 10, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0753 Approve the request from Appleton Downtown Inc. for a street occupancy 

permit to host a Sidewalk Sale on Friday August 2, Saturday August 3 

and Sunday August 4, 2024 from 10:00am to 6:00 pm (during Mile of 

Music) on the College Avenue beautification strip from 900 W. College 

Avenue to 300 E. College Avenue.

3 Appleton Downton Inc and Mile of Music - 8-2 to 8-4-24.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0754 Approve the request from Lil Taco for a street occupancy permit to place 

tables and chairs at 106 S. State Street. 

4 Lil Taco Tables & Chairs Permit.pdfAttachments:

Hold until next scheduled meeting.

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be held. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0755 Approve the permanent street occupancy permit for brick veneer 

extending no more than 4-inches into the right-of-way at Jack’s Apple 

Pub located at 535 W. College Avenue.  

5 Jacks ApplePub - Brick Veneer.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0756 Approve the permanent street occupancy permit for building awning 

projecting 4-feet maximum into the right-of-way with a minimum clearance 

of 10-feet at Jack’s Apple Pub located at 535 W. College Avenue.

6 Jacks ApplePub - Awning.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24454
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8acbc90a-0c1a-43b9-b63d-33d73ee2fe4d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24455
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=918074f4-d554-414f-85f2-4347c1ee73d9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24456
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7ed40bd5-8c24-4b41-b143-cf12e94d1258.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24457
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=01ba20ec-9553-47f7-aa4d-a915c26a3699.pdf


June 10, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0757 Approve the temporary street occupancy permit for a sidewalk closure 

related to building façade improvement at Jack’s Apple Pub located at 

535 W. College Avenue.

7 Jacks ApplePub-Mason Doctor Sidewalk Closure.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0758 Approve the award of Service Contract for Traffic Signal Control and 

Management Software. 

8 SISP Contract Award.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0759 Approve the award of the Unit Q-24 Pavement Marking Maintenance 

Contract (Paint).

9 Q-24 Pavement Marking Contract Award.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0760 Continue negotiations with Bird Rides for a 2024 Memorandum of 

Understanding. 

10 2024 Bird MOU Recommendation.pdfAttachments:

Meltzer moved, seconded by Firkus a motion to direct staff to discontinue negotiations 

with Bird Scooter (or any other commercial short term scooter rental company) for 

2024.

Meltzer moved, seconded by Firkus, a motion to direct staff to discontinue 

negotiations with Bird Scooter (or any other commercial short term scooter 

rental company) for 2024. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

24-0761 Create an ordinance prohibiting short-term rental of electric scooters to 

the general public. 

Meltzer moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24458
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=097387b1-c475-4780-b4ac-32f57c2fee3e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24459
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8f76f0ad-4ed6-4868-868b-4c5f3bc54ecd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24460
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47eef8ff-4c66-4fcd-81c1-92172ac8d2c6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24461
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b47d8533-05aa-4faf-a667-596a765eb680.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24462


June 10, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0341 Resolution #4-R-24 Sustainable Use of Pesticides 

 

#4-R-23 Sustainable Use of Pesticides.pdf

Memo RE 4.R.24 Sustainable Use of Pesticides Response.pdf

Attachments:

Hold to next scheduled meeting.

Meltzer moved, seconded by Siebers,  that the Report Action Item be held. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Nay: Doran1 - 

24-0766 Resolution #7-R-24 To Rescind the No Mow May Ordinance Language 

 

#7-R-24 Rescind No Mow May.pdf

WeedComplaintData_MSC_Memo06062024.pdf

Attachments:

Hold until next scheduled meeting.

Firkus moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Report Action Item be held. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Nay: Doran1 - 

Information Items7.

24-0762 I41 Project Newsletter, Spring 2024.  (ATTACHMENT)

I41_Newsletter_Spring2024.pdfAttachments:

Adjournment8.

Firkus moved, seconded by Siebers, that the meeting be adjourned. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Doran, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus5 - 

Page 5City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24042
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a56507d0-661a-4b7a-9fdd-83a88f1766d6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ff0a4f0-da48-4e99-865d-8ef4769ceabc.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24467
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f2c2530e-075d-4977-bdbf-344722e929a2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cab80162-4136-46c3-9a11-070194734075.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24463
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fa20b4b7-2f65-410c-81ec-b8062b8390e4.pdf


Rev. 05-2024

General 
e r n
ea n

 Street Address:
- or-

(Department use only)
upan y ype  Sub-Type Location
er anen   r n  
e rar   r n  

en nn al  
lan e nn al   
l  ar  

n n  

er

n

r n  er

  n a ner

 Certificate of Insurance Bond

Other : 

Traffic Control Requirements N/A

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

PERMIT TO OCCUPY    
THE     

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

er    

e e a e  

ra n a e  

n e n a le ee

a  e  r n

n a  ra  n   ne  a  r r  
an  lane l re  r  ne  a  r r  a ll r a  l re  

nal e re en

 This permit approval is subject to the following conditions:

Address:

Company:

ma l

Date:

Telephone:

Applicant Information

Arterial/CBD

Collector

Local 

Additional Requirements 
Plan/Sketch

Applicant Signature:

Other (attach plan)

APPROVED BY: DATE:
(Department of Public Works)

l le ree  

Name (print):

Proposed Traffic Control:

 Approved by: 

er ee  re n le  a n an  r er er  a  a  e re re  a  ar    an
er ee all a ere  an  lan  a  ere e   e   le n a  ar    a l a n

 er   e     an r an e  a    n n   e er  are n  e  
 er   e      n a ra le ra  n n  e el  r n  e er  e an   er e

Dumpsters Ds onta ners s all e lo ate  t n  o  a e o  ur  

Occupancy Information

Type of Street:

City Manual Page(s) 

Date:

State Manual Page(s) 

This permit is issued to the applicant upon payment of the permit fee and is expressly limited to the location and type described herein.  The applicant, in exchange for receiving this 
permit, warranties that all street occupancies will be performed in conformity to City ordinances, standards and policies, be properly barricaded and lighted, and be performed in a safe 
manner.  By applying for and accepting this permit, the applicant assumes full liability and/or any costs incurred by the City for corrective work required to bring the subject area into 
compliance with said ordinances, standards, policies and permit conditions. No occupancy shall occur prior to approval of this permit by the Department of Public Works.  

The Grantee shall guarantee at their expense, the repair or replacement of pavement, sidewalk and any other facilities within the public right-of-way damaged or destroyed by the Grantee 
or any sub-contractor working for them.  The Grantee shall assume complete and full liability and responsibility, in accordance with existing ordinances and policies, in the event of injury 
or damage to persons or property resulting from their facilities within the public right-of-way.

Date(s) From: To:  a  r  a  r 
         e re  ee an  n l r al

an  ar  

a les a r
e al

erra e

a a

e al r a a  r n re e e     r   

Committee and Council Approval

Date:

Tom Klister Rise Apartments LLC
229 E Washington St 920-284-9094

tklister@foreinvestmentgroup.com
6/12/2024

113 W Harris St

✔

✔

✔

Front door swings out onto public ROW (Sidewalk)  since the property is zero lot line. 
Having an outswing door will be more safe in case of fire or other reason for rapid evacuation.

$40.00
yes/157554362



Dear Pete Neuberger and Dan Meisner,  
 
This le5er is to provide our word as a statement of good faith that we will work with the City to 
execute an OperaBons and Maintenance agreement with the City of Appleton in perpetuity for 
us as the owner to maintain the concrete stoops and the common joint between the stoops and 
adjacent City sidewalk per City standards.  
 
 
Tom Klister 
Member 
 
 





Insurance Coverage:

Insurance Carrier: ___________________________________________________________

Insurance Agent Name and Phone Number: ______________________________________

Policy Number: _____________________________________________________________

Policy Period: ______________________________________________________________

* Bond Carrier: ______________________________________________________________

* Bond Agent Name and Phone Number: ________________________________________

* Bond Number: ____________________________________________________________

* Bond Period: _____________________________________________________________

I confirm that I have the authority to sign and certify the information contained herein as the permittee/licensee
or duly authorized representative of the entity obtaining this permit/license.

I have reviewed and understand the insurance and bonding requirements of the City of Appleton. I hereby certify
that I, or the company I represent have insurance and a bond in the amounts required to obtain this permit/
license. I have named the City of Appleton as an additional insured for purposes of this permit/license and have
provided the name of my insurance and bond carriers, the policy numbers and policy periods above.

Further, I agree to maintain appropriate insurance coverage for the duration of this permit/license and to
indemnify against any and all liability, loss, damage and expenses and costs including attorneys� fees arising out
of the activities performed as described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the
applicant, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, which may arise from the use of city right of
way or property under this permit or license.

I certify that this application, and all information and documentation provided therein, is true and accurate.

Company Name:__________________________________

Print Name: ______________________________________

Signature: _______________________________________

Date: ___________________________________________

* Bonds are required for the following types of work only:

Plumbing in the public right of way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 265)

Demolition of Buildings: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 188(a)(2))

Sewer lateral sealing in the public right of way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 188(c))

Moving of Buildings: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 207(5))

Cement Finisher�s License: $5,000.00 License Bond (Municipal Code Section 9 33)

Excavation or place facilities in the public right of way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 16 110)

Bond Coverage:



From: support@pointandpay.com
To: tklister@foreinvestmentgroup.com
Subject: Your Receipt
Date: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 9:28:08 PM

Greetings,

The City of Appleton thanks you for your payment.  For questions about your account, please call 920-832-6474

Your payment ID is: 157554362

Items Paid For:

Description: Street Occupancy
 Amount Paid: $40.00
 PermitDescription: Permanent - $40
 Project Address: 113 W Harris St
Customer Information:

 First Name: Thomas
 Last Name: Klister
 Address Line 1: 229 E Washington St
 Address Line 2:
 City: Appleton
 State: Wisconsin
 Zip Code: 54911
 Phone Number: 9202849094
 Email Address: tklister@foreinvestmentgroup.com

Payment Information:

 Subtotal: $40.00
 Fee Total: $1.50
 Total: $41.50
 Datetime: 06/12/2024 21:28:01

mailto:support@pointandpay.com
mailto:tklister@foreinvestmentgroup.com










bhechimo
Cloud

bhechimo
Callout
This closure to be removed and full open approximately July 15th

bhechimo
Cloud

bhechimo
Callout
This closure to be removed by 8.1.24 additional work beyond 8.1.24 if needed to be coordinated and completed under Findorff occupancy permit

bhechimo
Cloud

bhechimo
Callout
This closure to be closed until 8.15.24  During mile of music adjustments to fencing and work hours will be adjusted.





  
From: Jennifer Stephany <jennifer@appletondowntown.org>  
Sent: Monday, June 17, 2024 11:19 AM 
To: Brad Hechimovich <Brad.Hechimovich@boldt.com> 
Cc: Cole Alsbach <cole@darkhorsedevelopmentllc.com> 
Subject: Re: Fox Commons Sidewalk Closure and work Beyond July 1 
  
  
We greatly appreciate the communication and cooperation. We support the extension and 
will continue to work with Dark Horse and the Boldt team to coordinate our power needs 
for July 19th Light the Night Market and Farm Market each Saturday.  
  
Thank you for your partnership.  
  

Jennifer Stephany  

Pronouns: she, her, hers 

Executive Director 

Appleton Downtown Inc. 

920.954.9112 

appletondowntown.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:jennifer@appletondowntown.org
mailto:Brad.Hechimovich@boldt.com
mailto:cole@darkhorsedevelopmentllc.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fappletondowntown.org&c=E,1,VCiLDxQhAIE8z6yhzyVbIZJF_fM9n6NWSAg--7gOylMD0V-pb7gBOV4Hosh7GTgQ-FBBnTia9uEaZ6ZZgEHPUIbmjB-8eoVVS3ZseD8N&typo=1&ancr_add=1


From: Ethan Buechel <ebuechel@findorff.com>  
Sent: Friday, June 14, 2024 2:02 PM 
To: Brad Hechimovich <Brad.Hechimovich@boldt.com>; Peter Neuberger 
<Peter.Neuberger@Appleton.org>; Michael Hardy <Michael.Hardy@Appleton.org>; Joe 
Grueneberg <jgrueneberg@findorff.com> 
Cc: Chuck Yohanek <Chuck.Yohanek@boldt.com>; Collin Krueger <Collin.Krueger@boldt.com>; 
traffic.engineering@appleton.org; Matt Femal <mfemal@findorff.com>; Mackenzie Beck 
<mbeck@findorff.com>; Michael Hoier <mhoier@findorff.com> 
Subject: RE: Fox Commons Sidewalk Closure and work Beyond July 1 
 
Brad –  
  
Findorff agrees to the plan you have discussed with the City. The following are the only two 
comments I have: 
  

• As we get closer to ceasing use of the 2nd floor overhead doors, can you please 
confirm that Boldt will be able to get the bedroom watertight in a timely manner?  

• When will the concrete be installed for access to the freight elevator?  
  
Thank you and enjoy your weekend,  
  
Ethan Buechel 
Assistant Project Manager 
  
FINDORFF 
Building & Beyond 
226890 Harrier Ave | Wausau, Wisconsin 54401 
Direct: 715.803.2226 | Cell: 715.323.3337 | Main: 715.803.2222 
findorff.com  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.findorff.com%2f&c=E,1,o-s4dUFtZH_8Pj_js6HWK_lwM0U7kUf3XgujEK4QMreacYJ4nsydMJH9Ey7OuT9t-rKRyTulv2es6Dh4CM5SjaEUCSOwvPsrmQtF-qOVkfM,&typo=1


Revised Schedule – Boldt College Ave Temp Occupancy Permit Extension 
 

• The existing setup will remain thru July 15th . 
o Findorff continues their operation exclusively from the back side. 

• July 15th - East of Oneida Street intersection will open completely.   Jersey barrier removed, 
meter bags removed, sidewalk fully open. 

o Findorff continues their operation exclusively from the back side. 
• August 1st – West of Oneida Street intersection will open completely.   Jersey barrier 

removed, meter bags removed, sidewalk fully open.    
o Part of sidewalk at the old mall entrance north of the Oneida Street intersection will 

remain closed.    There is still ample walkable space to get around this (like today). 
 Work on in this area will cease late morning during Mile of Music event days, 

the fencing will be pulled back to create more sidewalk space.    
o Findorff begins the Monday thru Wednesday operation as part of their permanent 

occupancy permit.    
• August 15th – Last of Boldt’s sidewalk obstruction is removed.     

  
Brad will contact ADI to update them on all this for Farmers Marking and other events. Plan to be 
implemented sporadically to remove jersey barrier/fencing and support construction operations of 
the old mall entrance area (permitted weekdays prior to 2PM, except during Mile of Music event 
days).    
  
 
 





 













 

Resolution #7-R-24 
Resolution to Rescind No Mow May Ordinance Language 

 

Date: Wednesday June 5th, 2024  

Submitted By: Alderperson Christopher Croatt – District 14, Alderperson Hayden – District 7 

Referred To: Municipal Services Committee 

 

RESOLUTION SUMMARY 

A resolution to act on discontinuing the No Mow May program in the City of Appleton. The full 
resolution specifies action on rescinding the ordinance language directly related to the No Mow 
May program as it relates to tall grass and weeds which is found in Section 12-58 of the City Code 
and restore that section to the form it was in prior to April 6th, 2022.  
 

FULL RESOLUTION  

Whereas the No Mow May initiative was made a permanent part of the city’s ordinances in 2022, 
largely based on the data provided in a study looking at the quantity of bees and other pollinators 
found in mowed vs. non-mowed lawns, and;  

Whereas the study to support the new program was presented in 2022 to the Common Council as 
proof that non-mowed lawns in fact did show higher levels of bee richness and abundance, leading 
to the program being permanently adopted by Appleton and later by numerous other municipalities 
around Wisconsin, and;  

Whereas in November of 2022 the study was retracted by the authors of the paper as well as the 
publisher of the journal in which it appeared, and;  

Whereas the editor of the journal noted the findings of the study are “unreliable and could impact 
the results”, and;  

Whereas the retraction guidelines for the journal note that a paper should be retracted if the 
findings are unreliable, or the result of fabrication or falsification, and;  

Whereas as the basis for adoption of No Mow May, the science behind the study has been proven 
to be unreliable with faulty conclusions, and other apiologists who study bees have said that long 
grass provides no discernible benefit for bees and other pollinators, and;  

Whereas other Wisconsin communities such as neighboring Fox Crossing have rescinded their No 
Mow May initiative based on a recommendation from a sustainability committee, and;  

Whereas a UW-Madison Professor Emeritus recently attended a Village Board meeting in 
Waunakee and stated, “My take on it (No Mow May) is that it is well intentioned, but it’s probably 



having little impact”, he also stated typical vegetation in a midwestern lawn is not necessarily 
beneficial for pollinators and suggested other, better options exist, and;  

Whereas there are negative impacts of No Mow May on our neighborhoods for those that choose 
not to participate in it, there is some research that shows mowing actions immediately after No 
Mow May can have a negative impact on other insect populations, there is some research and 
opinion that excessively tall grass and weeds increases the likelihood of rodent/pest populations in 
our urban neighborhoods, and;  

Whereas there is an impact to the City of Appleton Inspections Division. This impact is directly 
related to addressing non-compliance post No Mow May through increased workload in June of 
every year.  

Whereas this resolution shall not be construed as a lack of support for helping pollinators. 
Pollinators are important and there are many other ways residents can contribute to helping 
pollinators and increase the livelihood and abundance of the bee population inside Appleton. The 
past couple of years shows many that participated in No Mow May are not taking any other 
significant actions to help the bee population, now;  

Therefore, Be It Resolved that based on a lack of scientific evidence to support the No Mow May 
program and based on other Wisconsin communities’ recent actions rescinding their ordinances 
related to it, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby takes formal action to remove the 
language in the current code and rescinds the No Mow May program for 2025. This includes making 
it more permanent by working with the City Attorney’s Office to repeal Ordinance 26-22 adopted on 
April 6, 2022, and restore Section 12-58 to its form prior to that date in order to enforce the city’s 
long grass ordinance during the entire growing season, including the month of May. 



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  June 6, 2024 
To:  Municipal Services Committee 
From: Kara Homan, AICP, Director of Community Development 

Kurt Craanen, Inspections Supervisor 
Subject: Comparative Data, Pre and Post “No Mow May” Weed Complaints 
 

 

At the request of Chair Fenton, we have prepared data related to Weed Complaints 
logged by the Inspections Division, pre- and post- implementation of “No Mow May,” as 
illustrated in Table 1, below. 

 

Table 1. City of Appleton | Average Weed Complaints, 2014-2019 and 2020-2023; 
and Annual Weed Complaints 2020-2023 

          

   Pre - "No Mow May" Post - "No Mow May"          
   Average Weed Complaints Average Weed Complaints Actual Weed Complaints  
   2014-2019 Average 2020 - 2023 Average 2020 2021 2022 2023  
  January 0.0 0.0 0 0 0 0  
  February 0.0 0.0 0 0 0 0  
  March 0.0 0.0 0 0 0 0  
  April 0.0 0.0 0 0 0 0  
  May 69.2 0.0 0 0 0 0  
  June 85.2 116.3 106 93 115 151  
  July 58.2 61.0 56 75 55 58  
  August 44.3 44.5 34 47 61 36  
  September 38.0 28.0 21 47 18 26  
  October 14.5 11.0 14 15 11 4  
  November 3.0 2.8 1 6 3 1  
  December 0.0 0.0 0 0 0 0  
          

Source: City of Appleton, iSeries Database 


















	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_06-10-24 MSC Minutes
	0002_1_Rise Apartments LLC - Permanent Occupancy Permit App MSC 06-24-2024
	Rise Apartments LLC - Permanent Occupancy Permit App DRAFT
	2275380c-1_1 - stoop exhibit
	Sheets and Views
	1_1


	EXH_2275380c-1_1 (002)

	0003_1_Boldt College Ave Occupancy Permit Extension MSC final 06-24-2024 
	Boldt College Ave Occupancy Permit Extension App MSC 06-24-2024 p1.pdf
	Boldt College Ave Occupancy Permit Extension MSC 06-24-2024 .pdf
	Boldt College Ave Long Term Temp Occupancy Permit Extension App DRAFT concurrence ADI Findorff
	From: Jennifer Stephany <jennifer@appletondowntown.org>  Sent: Monday, June 17, 2024 11:19 AM To: Brad Hechimovich <Brad.Hechimovich@boldt.com> Cc: Cole Alsbach <cole@darkhorsedevelopmentllc.com> Subject: Re: Fox Commons Sidewalk Closure and work Beyo...



	0004_1_4 Lil Taco Tables Chairs Permit
	0005_1_7-R-24 Rescind No Mow May
	0005_2_WeedComplaintData_MSC_Memo06062024
	0005_3_No Mow May Resolution Resident Handout



